
CARROLL COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
**Small Courtroom, Courthouse** 

         April 4, 2024   9:30 a.m.  
 ***PLEASE SILENCE CELL PHONES*** 

Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call 
Public Comments 

Consent Agenda 
1. Approval of the March 21st Meeting Minutes
2. Approval of Bills Paid in Vacation
3. Approval of Committee on Claims

Tabled Items 
Department Reports 

Animal Control 
Assessor 

1. Final Equalization
Circuit Clerk 
County Clerk & Recorder 
Emergency Management 
GIS 
Highway 

1. Monthly Report
Health Department 
Probation 
Sheriff 
States Attorney 
Transit 
Treasurer 
Zoning 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Affiliate Reports 
Blackhawk Hills Regional Council – Mrs. Bickelhaupt 
Business Employment Skills Team/Workforce – Mr. Flikkema  
Community Mental Health Board – Mrs. Bickelhaupt 
Emergency Telephone System Board – Mr. Rieck 
Health Board – Mr. Iske 
Hotel/Motel – Ms. Jacobs 
Jo/Carroll Enterprise Zone  
Jo Daviess Carroll County Joint Action Solid Waste Agency – Mr. Flikkema 
LRA – Ms. Jacobs 
NWILED – Ms. Jacobs 



1. Monthly Report
Senior Services Board – Mr. Soldat 
Tri-County Opportunities Council – Mr.  Preston 
United County Council of Illinois – Mr. Payette 

1. Monthly Report
Veterans Assistance Commission – Ms. Jacobs 
Whiteside Carroll Enterprise Zone - Mr. Payette 

Committee Reports 
Ad Hoc Inmate Housing Committee – Mr. Iske  
Ad Hoc Administrator Hire Committee – Mrs. Bickelhaupt 
Highway/EOC Building Renovation – Mr. Flikkema  
Ad Hoc Transit Garage Committee – Mr. Flikkema  

Old Business 

New Business 
1. Approval of Resolution to allow for the Cherry Grove- Shannon Township to obtain
permanent easement of Stonefield Drive
2. Approval of Resolution for Improvement under the Illinois Highway Code allocating
County Matching Funds for the Ideal Road project from Dutchtown Road to Morrison
Route in the amount of $804,000.00
3. Approval of Resolution to allocate budgeted Matching Funds to the Ideal Road
project in the amount of $5,385,000.00
4. Approval of Contract agreement with Hutchison Engineering to oversee the
construction of Ideal Road from Dutchtown Road to Morrison Route for the amount of
$500,296.00
5. Approval to utilize excess ARPA funds allocated for the salt shed replacement to
new garage doors in the maintenance shop and one garage door on the north side of
the shed behind the garage
6. Approval of Petition for Bridge Aid from Wysox Road District Section 144 Wagner
Road and allocation of County Bridge Aid funds in the amount of $4,860.00
7. Approval of Petition for Bridge Aid from Wysox Road District Section 24980
Dutchtown Road and allocation of County Bridge Aid funds in the amount of $3,240.00
8. Approval of Petition for Bridge Aid from Wysox Road District Section 26917
Dutchtown Road and allocation of County Bridge Aid funds in the amount of $4,860.00
9. Approval of Petition for Bridge Aid from Wysox Road District Section 26396
Dutchtown Road and allocation of County Bridge Aid funds in the amount of $7,290.00
10. Approval of Proclamation of Sexual Assault Awareness Month
11. Approval of Raffle License for Timber Lake Playhouse to conduct 1 raffle on three
separate nights (April 6 & 20 and May 4)
12. Approval to hire Robert Jachnicki as Carroll County Administrator
13. Approval of Board Members participation in UCCI Events

Executive Session 



Chairman Report 

Appointments – Approval of the following: 
Jo-Carroll Foreign Trade Zone for a term thru March 2027 (1) 
Hotel/Motel Tax Board for terms thru April 2026 (3) –  

Hotel Operator, B&B/Cabin/House Operator and an Alternate representatives 
Jo-Carroll Depot Local Redevelopment Authority for terms thru April 2025 (1), April  

2026 (2) and April 2027 (1) 
Fire District Trustees thru April 2027 (6) – Chadwick, Lanark, Thomson, Milledgeville, 

Mt Carroll, Savanna 
Adjournment 

Next County Board Meeting – April 18, 2024 9:30 a.m. 



CARROLL COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

301 N. MAIN ST., MT. CARROLL, IL IN SMALL COURTROOM 

MARCH 21, 2024 AT 9:30 A.M. 

  

Chair Payette called the Board meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.  

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Roll call shows Mr. Payette, Mr. Preston, Mr. Flikkema, Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Iske, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, 
Mr. Rieck and Mr. Soldat present.  Mr. Vandermyde was absent.  

Public Comments – None 

Chair Payette presented the consent agenda for approval.  
1. Approval of the February 15, 2024 Board Meeting minutes 
2. Approval of Bills Paid in Vacation 
3. Approval of Committee on Claims 

 
Motion by Mr. Preston, second by Ms. Jacobs to approve the consent agenda. Roll call shows 
Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Preston, Mr. Flikkema, Mr. Iske, Mr. Payette, Mr. Soldat, Ms. Jacobs, and 
Mr. Rieck all voting aye. Motion carried.   
 
Chair Payette presented for Approval of Board Member Services.  He noted that an Amended 
Board Member Services was sent out with corrections. The corrections were the per diem and 
mileage total for Mrs. Bickelhaupt as $740.77 and per diem correction for Mr. Iske was $780.00.  
Motion by Mr. Preston, second by Ms. Jacobs to Approve Board Member Services with the 
noted corrections.  Roll call shows Mr. Payette, Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Iske, Mr. Flikkema, Mrs. 
Bickelhaupt, Mr. Soldat, Mr. Rieck and Mr. Preston all voting aye.  Motion carried.  
 
Chair Payette moved up #1 under New Business - Approval of Resolution recognizing National 
Agriculture Day that was presented from the Carroll County Farm Bureau. FBCM Manager 
Victoria Hansen introduced herself and explained programs that the Farm Bureau hosts.  
Motion by Mr. Flikkema, second by Mr. Preston for Approval of Resolution recognizing March 
19, 2024 as National Agriculture Day.  Motion carried. 
 
Tabled Items-None  

 
Animal Control- No report.  

Assessor- Chief County Assessor Annette Gruhn and Chair Payette presented Louis 
Schloderback with a plaque acknowledging his 21 years of service on the Board of Review.  Mr. 
Schloderback also served on the County Board from 2003 to 2006.  Mr. Schloderback thanked 



Chief Assessor Gruhn, Judy Dampman and Chris Dulaney that worked with him on the Board of 
Review. 

Chief Assessor Gruhn invited the Board and public to join them in celebrating Lou’s 
accomplishments with cupcakes in her office.   

Circuit Clerk- Circuit Clerk Patty Hiher updated the Board that half of her 273 boxes of 
documents to be scanned have been picked up. The remaining will be picked up today.  Chair 
Payette thanked her for her hard work on that project.  

County Clerk- County Clerk Amy Buss reported that only 16.32% of registered voters voted in 
the Tuesday, March 19th Primary.  She thanked her election judges, counting center and her 
staff for all their hard work that is done at each election. 

Chair Payette informed the Board he has been asked if the County had a logo.  He asked the 
Board and Department Heads of their thoughts.  His suggestion was to hold a contest that is 
done through our local schools.   

Emergency Management- No report 

GIS- No report.  

Highway – A monthly report was submitted. 

County Engineer Sara Renkes went over several topics that were in the monthly report. 

She updated the Board on the Bridge Improvement Program (BIP) Discretionary Grant Program 
that former County Engineer Vandendooren applied for in 2022. Big Cut Road Bridge of the 
BNSF Railroad project was initially slated for April letting but now is slated for August.  

The salt shed had some shingles that blew off but Porter Brothers and their roofing 
subcontractor will repair the shingles at their cost. 

She informed the Board of upcoming topics and projects that she will be bringing to the Board 
meeting in April.  She will be asking the Board to consider letting her use unused ARPA (Fund 
84) funds that were not used on the salt shed to be used to purchase and install garage doors 
for the County Maintenance garage.   

County Board Member Preston asked why the portable scales for truck weighing are not being 
used.  Sheriff Kloepping answered since roads have not been posted and his lack of man power 
that the scales have not been used much.  His deputy must be certified on the scales which is 
an 80-hour course.  The scales have been calibrated and are ready for use.   

Health Department – No report.   

Probation- No report. 



Sheriff & Property- Sheriff Kloepping reported the tuckpointing on the lower stone foundation 
of the Courthouse will be begin when the temperatures are steadily above freezing. 

He reported that two squad cars had minor damage due to hitting a racoon and a deer.   

State’s Attorney – State’s Attorney Aaron Kaney reported the annual Law Day will be April 23rd.  

Transit – Chair Payette informed the Board that Mary Maszk will begin her duties as the new 
PCOM on Monday, March 25th.  Her office for a few months will be the Election voting room 
until she can move out to the basement of the Highway Department.  

Treasurer – County Treasurer Lydia Hutchcraft reported that due to a change in the state 
statutes all stipends that are paid to elected officials will be sent to the County to be 
distributed.  She will be creating a separate fund which will be Fund 33.  It was clarified that 
stipends are paid by the State not the County.   

Matt Schueler, CPA from WIPFLI presented a power point presentation of the 2023 audit.  The 
presentation highlighted the Auditor’s Reports, Things to Note, Change in Governmental Funds-
Current Year to Prior Year, Revenue by Function, Expenses by Function, Days in Fund Balance-
County General, IMRF Funded Ratio-Regular Plan, and IMRF Funded Ratio-SLEP Plan.  There 
were questions in regards to the IMRF Funded Ratio-SLEP Plan.  Chair Payette asked for this 
presentation to be forwarded to all Board Members.  Chair Payette thanked Matt Schueler for 
the good working relationship we have had over the years with WIPFLI.   

Zoning – Zoning Officer Jaicee Buckner reported that she attended a meeting with other Zoning 
officers from other counties.  

She has been investigating complaints and violations and has worked with the State’s Attorney 
on those matters. Also, she and the County Treasurer have been working together to better 
understand who is to collect the Hotel/Motel tax, and she is also preparing for the mandated 
building code changes that will go into effect on January 1, 2025.  

Zoning Board of Appeals – No report 

Affiliate Reports 

Blackhawk Hills Regional Council – No report.  

Business Employment Skills Team/Workforce – No report.    

Community Mental Health Board – No report. 

Emergency Telephone System Board - No report. 

Health Board – No report. 

Hotel/Motel – A monthly report submitted.  



Jo/Carroll Enterprise Zone - No report 

Jo Daviess Carroll County Joint Action Solid Waste Agency – No report  

LRA- No report.  

NWILED- No report. 

Senior Services Board - No report 

Tri-County Opportunities Council – No report.  

United County Council of Illinois – No report.  

Veterans Assistance Commission – No report  

Whiteside Carroll Enterprise Zone – No report.  

Committee Reports 

Ad Hoc Inmate Housing Committee- Mr. Iske reported the March 20, 2024 meeting was 
canceled.  Himself and Sheriff Kloepping did meet with Wold on that date to check on the 
progress of the data they requested from Wold.   

Ad Hoc Administrator Hire Committee-Mrs. Bickelhaupt reported the committee will meet in 
closed session at noon to conduct a second interview.  The committee should be bringing a 
recommendation to the Board at the next Board meeting.   

Highway/EOC Building Renovation-Mr. Flikkema reported that the contractor is hoping to start 
in the next month.   

Ad Hoc Transit Garage Committee- Mr. Flikkema reported there has been no update from the 
Illinois Department of Transportation.   

Ad Hoc PCOM Hire Committee- No report.  Chair Payette will remove this committee from the 
agenda.   

Old Business 

Chair Payette reported that he has met with the Mayor of Mt. Carroll regarding the Courtyard 
easement.  They are working on finding documentation on who owns what.  He has also been 
in contact with the surveyors to help clarify ownership. 

Chair Payette updated the Board on the status of Fund 84 (ARPA). For the salt shed build, 
$38,000 was not spent and is available.  For new truck purchases, $500,000 was committed 
with $316,000 yet to be paid.  The renovation for the Highway/EOC Building bid was $248,000.  
That is leaving $91,000 left but with interest the balance is $188,000 in Fund 84. 

 



New Business- Chair Payette presented for Approval a Raffle license for Timber Lake Playhouse.  
Motion by Mr. Soldat, second by Ms. Jacobs to approve.  Motion carried. 

Chair Payette presented for discussion and possible Approval of County Auditor contract. After 
much discussion on the current auditors, the current fee and why the high increase, the 
services they provide or if this should be bid out for Audit services, it was the consensus of the 
Board to wait and have our new Administrator provide a recommendation.   

Chair Payette presented for Approval of Resolution authorizing execution of the Section 5311 
Federal Grant and the DOAP-State Grant for FY25. Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mrs. 
Bickelhaupt to approve this Resolution.  Roll call shows Mr. Rieck, Mr. Payette, Mr. Flikkema, 
Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Soldat, Mr. Isek, Mr. Preston, and Ms. Jacobs all voting aye.  Motion 
carried. 

Chair Payette presented for Approval the Resolution to authorize providing Public 
Transportation. Motion by Mr. Preston, second by Ms. Jacobs to approve.  Roll call shows Mr. 
Iske, Mr. Soldat, Mr. Payette, Mr. Flikkema, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Rieck, Ms. Jacobs, and Mr. 
Preston all voting aye.  Motion carried. 

Sheriff Kloepping presented for Approval for the Sheriff’s Department 18 body and 10 vehicle 
cameras be purchased due to a law going into effect on January 1, 2025.  The total cost for the 
18 body and 10 vehicle cameras would be $163,000. If purchased before the end of the month, 
the company could lower the price by $7,000. The cameras would be purchased from Axon 
which is the same company the State’s Attorney uses for video evidence. The first year the cost 
would be $75,749.62 (with the $7,000 savings being spread out over the five years) then the 
remaining paid over the next four years.  The warranty is good until May 21, 2029 and the 
existing cameras will be update every 2 ½ years.  Motion by Mr. Rieck, second by Ms. Jacobs to 
approve the purchase of 18 body cameras and 10 vehicle cameras not to exceed $163,000. Roll 
call shows Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Flikkema, Mr. Soldat, Mr. Iske, Mr. Payette, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. 
Rieck and Mr. Preston.  Motion carried. 

Chair Payette presented for Approval of Petition for Bridge Aid from Woodland Road District 
Section -14511 Old Galena Trail Road.  Motion by Mr. Preston, second by Mrs. Bickelhaupt to 
approve the petition for Bridge Aid for Woodland Road District Section-14511, Old Galena Trail 
Road in the amount of $6,400 which half is paid by County and half by Township. Discussion. 
Roll call show Mr. Preston, Mr. Payette, Mr. Rieck, Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Iske, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. 
Soldat, and Mr. Flikkema all voting aye.  Motion carried. 

Chair Payette presented for Approval of Petition for Bridge Aid in the amount of $6,400 from 
Woodland Road District -14337 Old Galena Trail Road.  Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mr. 
Iske to approve Petition for Bridge Aid in the amount of $6,400 for Woodland Road District-
14337 Old Galena Trail Road in which half is paid by County and half by Township.  Roll call 
shows Mr. Rieck, Mr. Flikkema, Mr. Payette, Mr. Iske, Mr. Soldat, Mr. Preston, Ms. Jacobs, and 
Mrs. Bickelhaupt all voting aye.  Motion carried. 



County Engineer Renkes presented and explained the Approval of Resolution to allocate 
$45,000 of Matching Funds if awarded the Statewide Planning and Research Funds Grant with 
the Illinois Department of Transportation.  The $45,000 would be the County share of 20%.  She 
had $50,000 allocated in her budget so she is $5,000 under budget.  Roll call shows Mrs. 
Bickelhaupt, Mr. Preston, Mr. Flikkema, Mr. Iske, Mr. Payette, Mr. Soldat, Ms. Jacobs, and Mr. 
Rieck all voting aye.  Motion carried. 

County Engineer Renkes presented for Approval of Resolution to allocate $2,000 of Matching 
Funds for the contract with Cloudpoint Geo Spatial.  Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mrs. 
Bickelhaupt to approve this Resolution to allocate $2,000 of Matching Funds for the contract 
with Cloudpoint Geo Spatial with the understanding even if the grant is not approved, $2,000 
will still be owed to Cloudpoint Geo Spatial.  Roll call shows Mr. Payette, Ms. Jacobs, Mr. Iske, 
Mr. Flikkema, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Soldat, Mr. Rieck, and Mr. Preston all voting aye.  Motion 
carried. 

Chair Payette presented for Approval of contract with Cloudpoint GEO Spatial to write the 
Statewide Planning and Research Grant application at the cost of $2,000.  Motion by Ms. 
Jacobs, second by Mr. Soldat to approve the contract with Cloudpoint GEO Spatial in the 
amount of $2,000.  Roll call shows Mr. Rieck, Mr. Payette, Mr. Flikkema, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. 
Soldat, Mr. Iske, Mr. Preston, and Ms. Jacobs all voting aye.  Motion carried. 

Chair Payette presented for Approval of Sara Renkes, County Engineer and Sirena Brinkmeier, 
Administrative Assistant, with certificate of authority by County Board vote, to place Carroll 
County’s salt acquisition within the CMS web-based system.  This is a requirement with the 
Illinois Department of Transportation.  Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mr. Iske to approve.  
Motion carried. 

Chair Payette presented for Approval of support Sheriff’s Kloepping recommended Chief 
Deputy hire.  Motion by Ms. Jacobs, second by Mrs. Bickelhaupt to go into Executive Session at 
11:08 a.m. to discuss this matter under  5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) Personnel.  Roll call shows Mr. 
Flikkema, Mr. Preston, Mr. Payette, Ms. Jacobs, Mrs. Bickelhaupt, Mr. Rieck, Mr. Iske, and Mr. 
Soldat all voting aye. Motion carried. 

Board returned to Open Session from Executive Session at 11:41 a.m. 

Chairman Reports-Chair Payette updated that there will be updated Ordinances that will be 
brought to the Board for discussion and approval in the future. 

He reported to the Board that salaries will need to be set for elected officials soon. 

He informed the Board that there will be a Paid Leave Act webinar at 2 p.m. if any department 
supervisor is interested. 

Chair Payette asked Mrs. Bickelhaupt to explain the Spongy Moth warning the County received 
from the Illinois Department of Natural Resources. She advised they would like a letter from the 



County in support of the ratification of the Spongy Moth by aerial spraying.  Chair Payette 
informed the Board that he will contact the Illinois Department of Natural Resources on this 
matter. 

Appointments-  

Chair Payette removed the Appointment to the Jo-Carroll Foreign Trade Zone.  Robert Canier 
has served on that Board since 2006 and wishes not to be reappointed.  Chair Payette asked if 
anyone is interested in being appointed to that Board to contact him. 

Chair Payette informed that no Board action was needed to be taken on Sheriff’s Chief Deputy 
hire.  The Board previously had approved the Sheriff to fill the vacancy of the Chief Deputy.   

Motion by Mr. Jacobs, second by Mr. Preston to adjourn at 11:54 a.m. Motion carried.  

Submitted by Amy R. Buss, County Clerk and Recorder 

 



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank = 

Batch = ELECTION

Due Date = 

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

07 ELECTIONSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 MILEAGE

$76.80AMY BUSS 01107005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG640

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 NURSING HOME, COUNTING CENTER, MILEAGE

$137.20ARLENE BICKELHAUPT 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6240

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$21.60ARLYN J. HUIZENGA 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640828

2024 GENERAL PRIMARY 3/22/2024 PICKUP, DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$51.50BARBARA JO RUTER 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6716

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 SUPPLY PICKUP

$20.00BETH DIENER 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640520

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00BRENDA K. FELLER 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640307

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$27.10CAROL GLOOR 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640665

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 PICKUP & DELIVERY

$35.00CAROL STONER 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6798

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 POLLING LOCATION

$150.00CARROLL CO. FARM BUREAU 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT1580

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 SUPPLY PICKUP

$20.00CHARLES F GAUWITZ 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640568

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 ELECTION

$140.00CHERRY/GROVE SHANNON TWP. 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT820

Page 1 of 7Operator: janeadolph 3/22/2024 11:09:22 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)

Bills Paid in Vacation



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 PICKUP, DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$44.90CLARENCE W. HASZ 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6456

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 PICKUP, DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$41.60CYNTHIA  WOESSNER 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES4934

2024 GENERAL PRIMARY 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00DEBORAH HUIZENGA 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640827

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 NURSING HOME JUDGE

$75.00DIANE MANIKOWSKI 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640707

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00DiAnn Adolph 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640716

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY / MILEAGE

$31.50DOLORIS A. STITZEL 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6790

2024 PRIMARY 3/22/2024 ELECTION

$100.00ELKHORN GROVE TOWNSHIP 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT1490

2024 PRIMARY 3/22/2024 ELECTION

$165.00FAIRHAVEN TOWNSHIP 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT1650

2024 GENERAL PRIMARY 3/22/2024 DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$27.10FREDDIE PRESTON 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640295

2024 PRIMARY 3/22/2024 ELECTION

$100.00FREEDOM TOWNSHIP 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT1600

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00GRANT K WIEGERT 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640563

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 SUPPLY PICKUP

$20.00JANET BARKLEY 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES261

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 PICKUP, DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$36.10JANET HOCKMAN 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640664

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 PICKUP, DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$46.00JANICE S. VANDREW 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6822

Page 2 of 7Operator: janeadolph 3/22/2024 11:09:22 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00JERRY BREARTON 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640669

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$27.10JO A. CAREY 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640306

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00JOAN S. BROOKS 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640829

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 MILEAGE

$9.90JOANN M. PALMER 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6670

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 SUPPLY PICKUP

$20.00JOHN A. JIRGENSON 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6499

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 PICKUP, DELIVERY, MILEAGE, NURSING HOME

$133.10JOSEPH TITUS 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6830

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 PICKUP, DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$44.90JUDY DAMPMAN 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES1276

2024 GENERAL PRIMARY 3/22/2024 PICKUP, DELVERY, MILEAGE

$59.20JUNE R. SLICK 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6762

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 PICKUP, DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$38.30KAREN G. MCCARTY 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640312

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00KATHLEEN FOLSOM-JOHNSON 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6391

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00KATHLEEN M FOSSETT 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6378

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00KATHLEEN N. CARROLL 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6304

2024 PRIMARY 3/22/2024 MILEAGE SET UP POLLS

$79.73KENDRA S. STRAUCH 01107005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG640124

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00KIMBERLY SALADINO 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6720

Page 3 of 7Operator: janeadolph 3/22/2024 11:09:22 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$16.10LAURIE S FOLTZ 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640663

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 MILEAGE

$5.50LeAnne Nye 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640516

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$31.50LINDA A. THIETJE 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6823

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 EXTRA HELP, COUNTING CENTER

$252.00LINDA KESSLER 01107005020 CLERK'S OFFICE OVERTIME640840

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00LISA L. WIERSEMA 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640530

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 SUPPLY PICKUP

$20.00MARJORIE K. JACKSON 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6500

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$33.70MARK A. WIERSEMA 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640531

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 PICKUP, DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$47.10MICHAEL PICOLOTTI 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6682

2024 PRIMARY 3/22/2024 ELECTION

$140.00MT. CARROLL TOWNSHIP 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT3090

2024 GENERAL PRIMARY 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00NANCY SWEITZER 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6811

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$27.10PAMELA DARROW 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640126

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$27.10PAUL WINKLER 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640831

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 PICKUP, DELIVERY

$35.00PAULA M THOELE 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640671

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 PICKUP, DELIVERY, NURSING HOME

$110.00PHYLLIS M. PICOLOTTI 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6683

Page 4 of 7Operator: janeadolph 3/22/2024 11:09:22 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 SUPPLY PICKUP

$20.00RITA WASHINGTON 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6848

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 POLLING LOCATION

$200.00RIVERPORT RAILROAD 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT640837

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00ROBERT NOLTE 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640721

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00ROBERTA A. MCCONNEL 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6612

2024 PRIMARY 3/22/2024 ELECTION

$140.00ROCK CREEK/LIMA TOWNSHIP 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT3590

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 POLLING LOCATION

$400.00SAVANNA FIRE DEPARTMENT 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT640515

2024 PRIMARY 3/22/2024 ELECTION

$315.00SAVANNA TOWNSHIP 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT3820

2024 GENERAL PRIMARY 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00SHERYL RUTER 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640076

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00SUE BOELKINS 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640294

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 SUPPLY PICKUP

$20.00SUSAN MORGAN 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640220

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY, MILEAGE

$38.10VICKY L KLOTH 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640565

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00VICKY L. HAYES 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES6459

2024 PRIMARY ELECTION 3/22/2024 DELIVERY

$15.00VIRGINIA M DESWARTE 01107005019 JUDGES, BALLOTS & SUPPLIES640667

2024 PRIMARY 3/22/2024 ELECTION

$75.00WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT4770

Page 5 of 7Operator: janeadolph 3/22/2024 11:09:22 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

2024 PRIMARY 3/22/2024 ELECTION

$100.00WOODLAND TOWNSHIP 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT4780

2024 PRIMARY 3/22/2024 ELECTION

$140.00WYSOX TOWNSHIP 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT4960

2024 PRIMARY 3/22/2024 ELECTION

$100.00YORK TOWNSHIP 01107005022 HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT4970

$4,341.83Subtotal for Department: 07 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $4,341.83

Page 6 of 7Operator: janeadolph 3/22/2024 11:09:22 AM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank = 

Batch = BENTLEY

Due Date = 

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 087 PUBLIC DEFENDER SAFET

Y ACT

3.26.24 3/26/2024 COURTHOUSE / HALF DEPOSIT

$914.00BENTLEY PAINTING 08700005510 DISBURSEMENTS  640823

$914.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 087 : $914.00

Page 1 of 2Operator: janeadolph 3/26/2024 3:25:30 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Selection Criteria: Vendor =  

Bank = 

Batch = 

Due Date = 4/4/2024

Invoice Date = 

Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

01 COURTHOUSE UPKEEPDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

MARCH 2024 4/4/2024 MAIN ENTRANCE BATHROOMS

$1,030.00BENTLEY PAINTING 01101005436 COURTHOUSE IMPROVMT-TUCK640823

393290 4/4/2024 MONTHLY WEB HOSTING

$21.95COMPUTER DYNAMICS 01101005005 UTILITIES--TELEPHONE1091

F-2402037 4/4/2024 APRIL-JUNE QUARTERLY FIBER CONNECTION FEE

$2,100.00ifiber 01101005459 COURTHOUSE iFIBER LEASE2182

4104 4/4/2024 COURTHOUSE

$125.00PLATTENBERGER PLUMBING & HTG. 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE3412

8466915 4/4/2024 COURTHOUSE

$114.34PLUNKETT'S PEST CONTROL INC. 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE3413

0721-007939899 4/4/2024 SHERIFF

$230.14REPUBLIC SERVICES 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE640762

SN022622 4/4/2024 CARROLL COUNTY

$337.48SYNDEO NETWORKS, INC. 01101005005 UTILITIES--TELEPHONE640697

794430421 4/4/2024 SHERIFF

$103.80THE HOME DEPOT PRO 01101005003 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE640379

$4,062.71Subtotal for Department: 01 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 1 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)

Committee On Claims



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

02 SUPPLIES AND RENTALSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

1461400_3.11.24 4/4/2024 SUNDQUIST PRE EMP EXAM

$95.00PHYSICIANS IMMEDIATE CARE 01102005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG640339

T2418714 4/4/2024 SHERIFF

$259.00TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT REV. FUND 01102005319 RENTALS & LEASE640198

$354.00Subtotal for Department: 02 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 2 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

03 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

82247556 4/4/2024 CO CLERK

$462.83DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SERVICES 01103005025 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN640560

INV605491 4/4/2024 CIRCUIT CLERK

$161.45STERLING BUSINESS EQUIP. CENT. 01103005025 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENAN4192

$624.28Subtotal for Department: 03 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 3 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

05 SUPERVISOR OF ASSESSMENTSDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

3106569157 4/4/2024 ASSESSOR

$169.29PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SERV 01105005323 PRINTING SUPPLIES & OTHERS640586

37805593 4/4/2024 ASSESSOR / ZONING

$158.74QUILL CORPORATION 01105005323 PRINTING SUPPLIES & OTHERS3540

$328.03Subtotal for Department: 05 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 4 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

12 COUNTY TREASURERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

PSI37910 4/4/2024 TREASURER

$456.95COMPUTER INFORMATION CONCEPTS 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES1092

0711.12940 4/4/2024 TREASURER

$225.00DEVNET INC 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES1335

1024880974 4/4/2024 TREASURER

$182.58PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SERV 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES640586

37415076 4/4/2024 TREASURER

$184.95QUILL CORPORATION 01112005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES3540

$1,049.48Subtotal for Department: 12 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 5 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

17 ZONINGDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

37805593 4/4/2024 ASSESSOR / ZONING

$38.58QUILL CORPORATION 01117005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES3540

$38.58Subtotal for Department: 17 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 6 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

19 DOG CATCHERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

 CLAIM 4.4.24 4/4/2024 ACO / GAS

$129.09CARROLL COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT. 01119006039 AUTO TELEPHONE & SUPPLIES2040

CLAIM 4.4.24 4/4/2024 ACO / CELL PHONE

$80.22CARROLL COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT. 01119007055 CELL PHONE2040

$209.31Subtotal for Department: 19 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 7 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

20 COUNTY SHERRIFFDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

22880011-PX_3.14.24 4/4/2024 ONSITE INMATE

$50.00CGH MEDICAL CENTER 01120006085 PRISONER MEDICAL640044

22880009-PX_3.14.24 4/4/2024 ONSITE INMATE

$50.00CGH MEDICAL CENTER 01120006085 PRISONER MEDICAL640044

16231948 4/4/2024 SHERIFF

$214.79LEAF 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES2614

3.29.24 4/4/2024 SHERIFF

$1,598.08NORTHWEST IL CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION 01120005010 DUES640552

03192024 4/4/2024 SHERIFF

$1,000.00NORTHWEST ILLINOIS CRITICAL INCIDENT 01120005010 DUES640103

37570083 4/4/2024 SHERIFF

$29.69QUILL CORPORATION 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES3540

37573925 4/4/2024 SHERIFF

$39.18QUILL CORPORATION 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES3540

37576391 4/4/2024 SHERIFF

$153.74QUILL CORPORATION 01120005323 OFFICE SUPPLIES3540

3188827 4/4/2024 SHERIFF

$878.28RAY O'HERRON COMPANY 01120006044 SQUAD CAR MAINTENANCE3250

115327-02 4/4/2024 SHERIFF

$84.20UNIFORM DEN, INC. 01120006046 UNIFORMS4510

115357-01 4/4/2024 SHERIFF

$955.97UNIFORM DEN, INC. 01120006046 UNIFORMS4510

115452 4/4/2024 SHERIFF

$370.00UNIFORM DEN, INC. 01120006046 UNIFORMS4510

Page 8 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

$5,423.93Subtotal for Department: 20 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 9 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

22 EMERGENCY SERVICESDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

287314771337X03032024 4/4/2024 EMA

$72.48AT&T MOBILITY 01122007055 CELL PHONE640659

$72.48Subtotal for Department: 22 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 10 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

24 PUBLIC DEFENDERDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

2021JA2_3.20.24 4/4/2024 ATTY FEES

$75.00DAVID WEISSMILLER 01124007104 DEFENDING ATTORNEY-SALARY640170

2024JA4 2024JA5_3.20.24 4/4/2024 ATTY FEES

$75.00DAVID WEISSMILLER 01124007104 DEFENDING ATTORNEY-SALARY640170

2024JA4-5_3.20.24 4/4/2024 ATTY FEES

$75.00DAVID WEISSMILLER 01124007104 DEFENDING ATTORNEY-SALARY640170

2021JA6,2022JA1_3.20.24 4/4/2024 ATTY FEES

$75.00DAVID WEISSMILLER 01124007104 DEFENDING ATTORNEY-SALARY640170

$300.00Subtotal for Department: 24 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 11 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

26 STATES ATTORNEYDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

3.27.24 4/4/2024 REIMBURSEMENT FOR WITNESS

$830.46MELISSA LYONS 01126007068 INVESTIGATION EXPENSE640842

$830.46Subtotal for Department: 26 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 12 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

27 CIRCUIT CLERKDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

37735981 4/4/2024 CIRCUIT CLERK

$132.31QUILL CORPORATION 01127005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES3540

032724 4/4/2024 CIRCUIT CLERK - SHREDDING

$1,060.00REPUBLIC SERVICES OF FORRESTON 01127005323 PRINTING & SUPPLIES640841

$1,192.31Subtotal for Department: 27 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 13 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

29 COUNTY EDUCATION SVCS REGIODept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

GENERAL FUND_FEB24 4/4/2024 GENEARL FUND

$1,373.71REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01129007102 SHARED COSTS - JO DAVIES & S690

OFFICE RENT FEB 2024 4/4/2024 OFFICE RENT

$481.17REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION # 8 01129007103 SHARED RENT - JO DAVIES & ST691

$1,854.88Subtotal for Department: 29 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 14 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

31 FINANCIAL SOFTWAREDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

393307 4/4/2024 TREASURER

$459.00COMPUTER DYNAMICS 01131005525 BACKUP SUPPORT                1091

393307 4/4/2024 TREASURER

$55.00COMPUTER DYNAMICS 01131005431 FINANCIAL SOFTWARE SUPPOR1091

$514.00Subtotal for Department: 31 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 15 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

35 HIGHWAY OFFICE UPKEEPDept:

Fund: 011 GENERAL FUND

F-2402037 4/4/2024 APRIL-JUNE QUARTERLY FIBER CONNECTION FEE

$340.00ifiber 01135005460 iFIBER LEASE                  2182

$340.00Subtotal for Department: 35 : 

Total for Fund: 011 : $17,194.45

Page 16 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 014 COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND

CLAIM 4363-C 4/4/2024 SHOP SUPPLIES

$128.321st AYD CORPORATION 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE640634

CLAIM 4363-C 4/4/2024 FINANCE CHARGE

$124.77BARAKS TRUCK REPAIR, INC 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE640650

CLAIM 4363-C 4/4/2024 PETTY CASH

$72.53COUNTY ENGINEER 01400005109 ADMINISTRATIVE4260

CLAIM 4363-C 4/4/2024 IACE SPRING CONFERENCE REGISTRATION

$200.00IL ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY 01400005106 ENGINEERING FEES2140

CLAIM 4363-C 4/4/2024 SHOP SUPPLIES

$212.07KIMBALL MIDWEST 01400005104 MATERIALS, STORES & SUPPLIE2459

CLAIM 4363-C 4/4/2024 FUEL FITTING

$44.28NORTHERN ILLINOIS DIESEL 01400005103 HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT MAINTEN3220

CLAIM 4363-C 4/4/2024 GARBAGE

$2.16REPUBLIC SERVICES 01400005105 GARAGE OPERATION & MAINTE640762

 CLAIM 4363-C 4/4/2024 ACO CELL PHONE

$80.22U.S. CELLULAR 01400005112 REIMBURSEMENTS4577

CLAIM 4363-C 4/4/2024 CO ENG CELL PHONE

$91.84U.S. CELLULAR 01400005109 ADMINISTRATIVE4577

CLAIM 4363-C 4/4/2024 CA-10

$390.72WENDLING QUARRIES, INC. 01400005101 MAINTENANCE OF COUNTY HIG4791

$1,346.91Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 014 : $1,346.91

Page 17 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 015 TOWNSHIP MOTOR FUEL T

AX

7833-MT 4/4/2024 PATCH MIX

$997.65MANATT'S INC 01500005158 REBUILD ILLINOIS              640450

7835-MT 4/4/2024 CA6/CA10

$12,065.91SAVANNA QUARRY 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS3806

7834-MT 4/4/2024 CA-10

$12,839.00WENDLING QUARRIES, INC. 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS4791

7836-MT 4/4/2024 EQUIPMENT RENTAL

$11,322.44WOODLAND TOWNSHIP 01500005120 MAINT/CONSTRUCTION - ROADS4780

$37,225.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 015 : $37,225.00

Page 18 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 019 FICA OR SOCIAL SECURIT

Y FUND

SS LEVY FEB 2024 4/4/2024 SOCIAL SECURITY LEVY

$90.06REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01900005131 SUPERINTENDENT SHARE TRUS690

$90.06Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 019 : $90.06

Page 19 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 020 IMRF FUND

IMRF FEB 2024 4/4/2024 IMRF LEVY

$102.35REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION 02000005129 SUPERINTENDENT SHARE TRUS690

$102.35Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 020 : $102.35

Page 20 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 023 COUNTY RECORDER FEES

0898933-IN 4/4/2024 BASTION - AVID HOSTING APRIL-JUNE 2024

$2,650.00FIDLAR TECHNOLOGIES 02300005445 BASTION SYSTEM CLOUD BACK-1660

0235968-IN 4/4/2024 LAREDO FEBRUARY 2024

$922.00FIDLAR TECHNOLOGIES 02300005181 ONLINE EXPENSES1660

$3,572.00Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 023 : $3,572.00

Page 21 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 041 COUNTY 911 ETSB FUND

 MARCH 2024 4/4/2024 3RD FLOOR

$1,650.00BENTLEY PAINTING 04100005192 EQUIPMENT & REPAIRS640823

37669396 4/4/2024 SHERIFF/911

$569.98QUILL CORPORATION 04100005323 PRINTING, SUPPLIES & POSTAG41044

$2,219.98Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 041 : $2,219.98

Page 22 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

00 NonDepartmentalDept:

Fund: 054 COUNTY HEALTH FUND

4.4.24 4/4/2024 HEALTH DEPT / REIMBURSEMENT

$280.73CHRISTOPHER PLATH 05400005012 TRAVEL640802

21835475 4/4/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$129.07MCKESSON MEDICAL-SURGICAL 05400005396 MEDICAL SUPPLIES & COMMODI640546

MARCH 2024 4/4/2024 HEALTH DEPT

$325.00STEPHANIE S. HUGHES 05400005437 PART-TIME JANITOR640770

$734.80Subtotal for Department: 00 : 

Total for Fund: 054 : $734.80

Page 23 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



Invoice Inv Date

Invoice Amt

Open Invoices by Fund/Department (APLT22) Carroll County

Invoice Description

Vendor Account Account Description

Fund Totals
Fund Fund TotalFund Name

011 $17,194.45GENERAL FUND

014 $1,346.91COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND

015 $37,225.00TOWNSHIP MOTOR FUEL 

019 $90.06FICA OR SOCIAL SECURIT

020 $102.35IMRF FUND

023 $3,572.00COUNTY RECORDER FEES

041 $2,219.98COUNTY 911 ETSB FUND

054 $734.80COUNTY HEALTH FUND

$62,485.55Total:

Page 24 of 24Operator: janeadolph 4/1/2024 2:08:43 PM

Report ID: (APLT22)



March 28, 2024 

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT 
April 4th, 2024 

STONEFIELD DRIVE PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR CHERRY GROVE-SHANNON ROAD DISTRICT 

1. Agenda Item: Resolution to allow for the Cherry Grove- Shannon Township to obtain permanent
easement of Stonefield Drive

Cherry Grove-Shannon Township has been maintaining Stonefield Drive for many years prior to today. 
Due to a sale of the property, it was brought to our attention that there was no permanent easement 
documentation, that we could find, on file for the township. Both the landowner and the township 
would like to continue having the township care for this roadway and would like to update all 
paperwork to reflect this. The Department recommends approval. 

IDEAL ROAD CULVERT AND ROAD PROJECT SECTION 20-00102-00-PV RESOLUTION OF IMPROVEMENT 
UNDER THE ILLINOIS HIGHWAY CODE 

2. Agenda Item: Resolution for Improvement Under the Illinois Highway Code allocating County
Matching Funds for the Ideal Road project from Dutchtown Road to Morrison Route in the
amount of $804,000.00

This is required documentation by the Illinois Department of Transportation. This resolution allows the 
county to spend the Rebuild Illinois (Covid) funds that the county has been saving up for this project. 
These funds have to be utilized within this year, and have been budgeted. The Department recommends 
approval. 

IDEAL ROAD CULVERT AND ROAD PROJECT SECTION 20-00102-00-PV RESOLUTION OF MATCHING 
FUNDS 

3. Agenda Item: Resolution to allocate budgeted Matching Funds to the Ideal Road project in the
amount of $5,385,000.00

This resolution allows the County Highway Department to utilize budgeted County Matching funds for 
the Ideal Road project. Within the resolution you can see that $4,955,938.95 are reimbursable from 
federal and state funds. I have included the cost breakdown also, that is being reviewed by IDOT at 
this time with some of my notes. This breakdown and full BLR 05310C document will be presented to 
the board for approval after IDOT’s review. If changes need to be made to the county matching fund 
allocation, another resolution will also be presented. The Department recommends approval. 

IDEAL ROAD CULVERT AND ROAD PROJECT SECTION 20-00102-00-PV CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING 
AGREEMENT WITH HUTCHINSON 

4. Agenda Item: Contract agreement with Hutchison Engineering to oversee the construction of
Ideal Road from Dutchtown Road to Morrison Route for the amount of $500,296.00.

Hutchison Engineering is based out of Peoria Illinois but has been working in the Quad Cities for some 
time and has started to supervise projects in Northern Illinois for Illinois Department of Transportation. 



 
 

This contract is a Cost plus Fixed Fee, see page 3 of the agreement for an explanation. Page 7 provides a 
summarized version of the tasks they will be providing and Page 8 states the construction working days 
allotted for the project, 140. 

Hutchison completed our Quality Based Selection process with impressive knowledge of the different 
elements that will be installed throughout the project, especially full depth reclamation which is a key 
design element. 

The Highway Department will utilize Federal, MFT/Covid, and County Matching funds to pay for this 
contract. The Department recommends approval. 

GARAGE DOOR FOR MAINTENANCE GARAGE 

5. Agenda Item: Approval to utilize excess ARPA funds allocated for the salt shed replacement to 
new garage doors in the maintenance shop and one garage door on the north side of the shed 
behind the garage.  

Attached is the estimate from American Eagle Overhead Doors in Morrison to replace the four garage 
doors at the maintenance shop and place an overhead garage door in the shed behind the shop utilizing 
prevailing wage pay. This estimate does still need to be updated. As of now it does not include the 
openers, which are needed and I’m estimating another $1000 per door. Also, the estimate has a new 
door install for the shed behind the shop. I would like to instead utilize the best of the doors that are 
being replaced in the maintenance shop and install that door in the shed. There is already electricity to 
this shed. 

The department is asking for permission to utilize ARPA funds leftover from the Salt Shed to supplement 
the cost of this improvement. As of today, there is still $36,482.58 left in this allotment and I would like 
to utilize another estimated $4,000 toward more gravel around the salt shed. After that, $32,482.58 will 
be left. If this allocation change is allowed, I will proceed with getting an updated estimate from 
American Eagle and try to obtain 2 more estimates from other companies in the area.  

WYSOX ROAD DISTRICT BRIDGE PETITION FOR AID- SECTION 144 WAGNER ROAD 

6. Agenda Item: Petition for Bridge Aid from Wysox Road District Section 144 Wagner Road and 
allocation of County Bridge Aid funds in the amount of $4,860.00 

Wysox Road District has petitioned the County for Bridge Aid for the replacement of a corrugated 
elliptical metal pipe with the installation of 42” by 44’ concrete pipe and associated roadwork. The total 
cost of $9,720.00 would be divided equally between the County and the Road District, with the county 
share coming from the County Bridge Fund, $4,860.00. The Department recommends approval.  

WYSOX ROAD DISTRICT BRIDGE PETITION FOR AID- SECTION 24980 DUTCHTOWN ROAD 

7. Agenda Item: Petition for Bridge Aid from Wysox Road District Section 24980 Dutchtown Road 
and allocation of County Bridge Aid funds in the amount of $3,240.00 

Wysox Road District has petitioned the County for Bridge Aid for the replacement of a corrugated metal 
pipe with the installation of 30” by 48’ concrete pipe and associated roadwork. The total cost of 
$6,480.00 would be divided equally between the County and the Road District, with the county share 
coming from the County Bridge Fund, $3,240.00. The Department recommends approval.  



 
 

WYSOX ROAD DISTRICT BRIDGE PETITION FOR AID- SECTION 26917 DUTCHTOWN ROAD 

8. Agenda Item: Petition for Bridge Aid from Wysox Road District Section 26917 Dutchtown Road 
and allocation of County Bridge Aid funds in the amount of $4,860.00 

Wysox Road District has petitioned the County for Bridge Aid for the replacement of a corrugated metal 
pipe with the installation of 42” by 56’ concrete pipe and associated roadwork. The total cost of 
$9,720.00 would be divided equally between the County and the Road District, with the county share 
coming from the County Bridge Fund, $4,860.00. The Department recommends approval.  

WYSOX ROAD DISTRICT BRIDGE PETITION FOR AID- SECTION 26396 DUTCHTOWN ROAD 

9. Agenda Item: Petition for Bridge Aid from Wysox Road District Section 26396Dutchtown Road 
and allocation of County Bridge Aid funds in the amount of $7,290.00 

Wysox Road District has petitioned the County for Bridge Aid for the replacement of a corrugated metal 
pipe with the installation of (2) 36” by 56’ concrete pipe and associated roadwork. The total cost of 
$14,580.00 would be divided equally between the County and the Road District, with the county share 
coming from the County Bridge Fund, $7,290.00. The Department recommends approval.  

MFT LETTING UPDATE 

April 5th is when all bid documents are required to be returned to the County Highway Office. I will bring 
the results of this letting to the board at the next board meeting for review and approval. 

SAFE STREETS FOR ALL GRANT WEBSITES 

Virtual Map: https://kaskaskiaeng.com/nwil-sap-interactive-safety-map/  

NWIL SAP Interactive Safety Map | Kaskaskia Engineering 

Project Website: https://kaskaskiaeng.com/northwest-illinois-safety-action-plan/ 

Northwest Illinois Safety Action Plan | Kaskaskia Engineering 

 

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fkaskaskiaeng.com%2fnwil-sap-interactive-safety-map%2f&c=E,1,xwy-kLZiIQ3Z2-qiUzAQO52cXVV8dwCn_esdHP5nwf1UImDwMB1c1VG9xyp_ffEK0_Z1eXEkya5qUFjSgJGGTDPuNoqOKqan6BR7ZHI3&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fkaskaskiaeng.com%2fnorthwest-illinois-safety-action-plan%2f&c=E,1,Mxy4aWuDZqY_UPvhvDPu5nu77AZM6vOyrWThXpbe94loeLzNNVN40yt-A5nj-iNrTu6vH7nTQueE8BScGfBCNmxGbWzvQCoUDwrbCr553P10tnTQBthkdcJ99Lw,&typo=1


Hello NWILED Members and Strategic Partners – 

I hope you have enjoyed these first few days of spring. This time of the year NWILED transitions into 
our spring/summer programing, which includes our entrepreneurial scholarship, lunch & learn events, 
and rounds of site visits.  

Below is your monthly update on recent happenings at the organization. 

1. Attended by special invite an IL DCEO Northwest Region Planning Event in Moline specific to
updating the State of Illinois five-year economic development plan. There were about 25
regional economic development practitioners assembled, and we agreed that the most
pressing issue facing our region was the lack of workforce housing.

2. Issued a press release for our 2024 Annual Meeting. (release attached)
3. Shared out the Illinois Extension 2022 tourism study highlighting Savanna. I encourage you to

look at it and share/reshare it with your hospitality facing stakeholders. (study attached)
4. Submitted the Jo-Carroll LRA for ‘Project Transfer.’  Intersect Illinois reported on 3/22/2024

that a transload company is looking to lease 10–15-acre, rail served sites in Illinois. They are
seeking sites in Northern IL and near the St Louis Metro areas but are also interested in
considering sites throughout the state.  The sites will need to serve 600-700 rail cars
annually.  Sites with river access would be a plus.  Existing spurs are not necessarily required,
but rail served is. Fire suppression will be needed. Heavy industrial zoning.
Jobs: Approximately 4. CAPX: $1 - $2.5M. Geography: Illinois rail served sites. Chicagoland and
East St. Louis areas are top priorities, but all rail served sites of interest. Site Requirements
Site: 10-15 acres, Rail Served, Zoned for Heavy Industry, 0 .25+ miles from nearest
houses/schools/sensitive areas. Fire suppression nearby. Property for lease.

a. Refreshed the Intersect Illinois/DCEO RFP List. (RFP doc attached)
5. Updated NWILED’s online site map for commercial and industrial properties that are for sale in

Carroll and Jo Daviess counties.
6. Mailed the Workforce Housing card to 167 prime contractors/builders. This action concludes

the workforce housing initiative NWILED began in 2019. NWILED will remain engaged with the
issue, but there are no future actions or deliverables expected of us. (card attached)

7. We had 9 applicants for the annual John D. Cooke, III Memorial Entrepreneurial Scholarship.
Like in 2023, there will be one $2,000 first place award and two $1,500 runners up awards. The
review committee will announce the 2024 winners at our April 10th board meeting.

8. Reissued a letter of support to SOO Green for a clean energy transmission route that would
run through our service area. SOO Green requested a letter last May, but that application
wasn’t successful. This current letter targets a second round of funding. (updated letter
attached)

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.nwiled.org%2fsite-data.php&c=E,1,M2LYt9kdJ0SmsyD3J8m2-730ObpikU7tFa2Q701SBudLVanxOW6CBBoY_eOFxZxEivND1Lf-hazjUJzwRTgWCPYyip2vpfWlsOlAFL72&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.nwiled.org%2fentrepreneurial-scholarships.php&c=E,1,x0XSP2PF3XNQfijZ5ZqwZEzy6sUQgyf7VpI65gAV-5t2G4i61ueamrHmJNeohiQRlo7VAdGvpL-DEuYc3SXvtNTRVkRXoRQRjChReq-5GEVP4A,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fsoogreen.com%2f&c=E,1,IxML2YyMO9Jpnnjnw0_gXKWrj4fc5QY5jOQgCNyZZ4Cd6roFcJ7LkGtS8PxeX7mnOGAYCQNuygNe4NJLQrrrWEuM8UWbd36i5EhWm36s&typo=1


9. IL Dept of Commerce and Economic Opportunity is planning a series of site visits in April with 
businesses in Carroll and Jo Daviess counties that are looking to expand in the next 24-36 
months and asked me to schedule their visits. More on this soon.  

10. Hosted our Genz Lunch and Learn in Savanna. Members of NWILED’s Executive Committee 
assisted me in presenting a program overview to small group of area stakeholders.  

11. Hosted Build It Grow It sessions in Galena and Savanna. This month’s topic was marketing 
plans.  We are up to 44 registered participants between the two locations.  

12. Took in the Labor Force & Employment by Industry Update reports for Carroll and Jo Daviess 
counties from the Illinois Department of Employment Security. 

a. Carroll County’s Unemployment Rate was 5.8% in January 2024, which is up from 
4.4% in December 2023. 

b. Jo Daviess County’s Unemployment Rate was 6.2% for January 2024, which is up from 
4.2% in December 2023. 

13. Mailed a large 461-count mailer containing one-pager handouts from the following partners: 
IL Bank and Trust, JCE Co-op, and IL Dept of Commerce and Economic Opportunity. Also 
included was NWILED’s Business Financing Programs Guide for 2024, and the Feb 8th press 
release that announced our entrepreneurial scholarship. 

14. NWILED Diverse Businesses Initiative update: 

a. Uploaded the Spanish-language version of the 2023 Annual Report to the website. 
b. Mailed the Spanish-language version of the NWILED Business Financing Programs 

Guide for 2024 to 15 regional businesses.   
c. Took out a sponsorship for the 2024 Galena Pride Picnic. 

15. Shared a help wanted ad for Village of Stockton and JCE Co-op. 

  

What’s on the horizon for April?  

1. Touring the Davis Community Center in Mount Carroll to see if the location would be a good fit 
for NWILED’s Carroll County satellite office.  

2. Apprenticeship Lunch and Learn w/ BEST Inc on April 24th. (flyer attached) 
3. IL Dept. of Commerce and Economic Opportunity site visits (6). 

 

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.nwiled.org%2fabout.php&c=E,1,FhIKEEvpAu8S9Ei7aibx-3nRYMlNqGryAU5NpdUmpQhjJRBhxsUZW-AYlaKC11HFx7FT0pTLN8JzTEw82JU-1yDK5dsSFWvrFpPRfJVf3yQ,&typo=1


 

 
 

AGENDA  
UCCI  

MEMBERSHIP MEETING 
 
 

Wednesday, April 10, 2024 
1:00 P.M.  

Abraham Lincoln Presidential Library 
Multi-Purpose Room (2nd Floor) 

212/112 North 6th Street, Springfield 
 

Pledge of Allegiance  
 
1.  Approval of Minutes (February 26, 2024) 
 
2.   Treasurer’s Report  
 
3.   Review of Activities for April 10-11, 2024 
 
4.   Old Business 

 2024 UCCI/University of Illinois Leadership Academy 
 
5. New Business 
 
6. Adjournment 
 
 

NEXT MEETING 
May 20, 2024 (Monday) 
9:30 A.M.  
President Abraham Lincoln Hotel 
701 East Adams – Springfield 

 



 

 

 
 
TO:  UCCI Members 
FROM: Joseph Payette, Secretary 
SUBJECT: Membership Meeting 
  Monday, February 26, 2024 
  9:30 A.M. – President Abraham Lincoln Hotel 
  Springfield 

 
 
This will summarize the decisions and actions of the above meeting attended by the following: 
 
BOND   Bernard Myers 
BUREAU  Sharon Schallhorn 
CALHOUN  Deann Koster-Fester 
CARROLL  Joseph Payette 
CASS   Eric Snellgrove 
CHRISTIAN  Bryan Sharp 
CLINTON  Brad Knolhoff, Mike Hilmes 
CUMBERLAND Jonathan Kaye 
EDWARDS  Mary Beth Smith 
EFFINGHAM Norbert Soltwedel 
HENRY  Kippy Breeden, Marshall Jones, Dale Stiles 
IROQUOIS  Ray Williams 
JACKSON  Andrew Erbes 
KENDALL Matthew Prochaska 
KNOX  Greg Bacon  
LEE   Tom Kitson, Keane Hudson 
LIVINGSTON Alina Hartley 
LOGAN                     Mike DeRoss 
MADISON                 Dave Tanzyus 
MARION                   Debbie Smith, Lori Linder 
MARSHALL             Henry Gauwitz 
MASON  Eldon Garlisch 
MENARD  Dara Worthington 
OGLE   Bruce Larson 
PIATT  Todd Henricks 
PIKE   Donald Foster 
RICHLAND  Cynthia Given 
SALINE  Chuck DePriest 
SCHUYLER  Alison Armstrong 
STARK  J. Thomas Howes 
ST. CLAIR  Mark Kern 
STEPHENSON Samuel Newton  
TAZEWELL  David Zimmerman 
WASHINGTON David Meyer, Gary Suedmeyer, Dennis Shemonic, Larry Unverfehrt 



 

 

2
WHITESIDE Martin Koster 
WILL Julie Berkowicz, Destinee Ortiz 
WILLIAMSON Tim Atkisson, Jim Marlo 
WOODFORD John Krug 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
The meeting was called to order by UCCI President David Meyer. 
 
AGENDA ITEM #1 – Welcome/Introductions 
 Noting weather conditions being quite different than when January meeting was cancelled at the 
last minute, President Meyer welcomed all to the first membership meeting of 2024.  With the addition 
of six new member counties, and a number of new members in attendance, President Meyer asked for 
individual introductions to be made; and, followed up with introduction of Executive Committee 
members, legal counsel and office staff. 
 
AGENDA ITEM #2 – Approval of Minutes (November 13, 2023) 
 Motion by Richland County 
 Seconded by Lee County 
 Voice Vote - Motion PASSED. 
 
AGENDA ITEM #3 – Treasurer’s Report (October 2023-January 2024) 
 Motion by Washington County 
 Seconded by Henry County 
 Voice Vote - Motion PASSED. 
 
AGENDA ITEM #4 – President/Executive Director’s Remarks 
 Executive Director McCreery’s remarks included the recognition of six new UCCI member 
counties (Clark, Greene, Mercer, Peoria, Scott and Will), a welcome to first-time attendees, and a brief 
overview of the three annual conferences hosted by UCCI … Legislative Conference held in the spring 
of the year; Annual Conference held in the summer at Eagle Ridge Resort in Galena; and, the Fall 
Conference in late October held at the Abraham Lincoln Presidential Library & Museum in Springfield. 
 2024 Legislative Conference Update … Mr. McCreery provided a brief overview of the 
upcoming April 10-11 Legislative Conference which for the first time welcomes the Illinois State 
Association of Counties (ISACO) as UCCI’s co-host … Day 1, Legislative Briefing, Membership 
Meeting and evening Reception for members of the Illinois General Assembly; Day 2, Education 
Seminar (half-day) … and encouraged those interested in attending to get your registrations in early. 
 2024 Leadership Academy Program … Mr. McCreery also announced that applications were 
now being accepted for the 2024 UCCI/University of Illinois Leadership Academy program.  This 
year’s two-sessions, retreat-style program will again be held at the I-Hotel & Conference Center located 
on the University of Illinois Champaign campus.  The dates for the program are: Session 1/May 30-31 & 
June 1; Session 2/June 27-28-29 (Thursday afternoon session; Friday all day session; and, Saturday 
morning session).  Graduates of the program will be recognized during the Fall Conference in October.  
There is no cost to participate. However, you must apply to participate and participation is limited to 30 
applicants.  
  



 

 

3
 
AGENDA ITEM #5 – Presentation by Ms. Colleen Smith, Director of Government Affairs,  
Invenergy … ‘State of Renewable Energy in Illinois ‘ 
 Ms. Smith’s introduction by Mr. McCreery included a brief overview of her 
background/experience.  Ms. Smith elaborated on her personal background/career in the renewable 
energy industry before providing an introduction/detailed overview of Chicago-based Invenergy, the 
leading privately held developer, owner and operator of sustainable energy solutions globally.  Ms. 
Smith’s discussion and PowerPoint presentation was informative/detailed and included, but was not 
limited to, Invenergy clean energy experience/proven track record-wind, solar, storage, offshore wind, 
transmission, clean hydrogen, clean water, and natural gas; global track record/deep development 
pipeline; review/discussion of 20 Illinois projects-12 wind, 3 solar, 3 storage, and 2 natural gas;  Grain 
Belt Express/largest energy infrastructure project in Illinois; Invenergy approach to vegetation 
management; wind vs solar project challenges/misinformation/property values/standardization of 
taxation; tax revenues/benefits for Illinois communities; and, 2023 Illinois legislation/HB4412  
(PA102-1123). 
 Question/Answer session held.  Handout material provided. 
  Resources/references mentioned by Ms. Smith will be provided for distribution to membership. 
 
AGENDA ITEM #6 - Legislative Report/Presentation … ‘Just a bill … a crash course in legislative 
process for county officials’  
 Legal Counsel … Mr. Brokaw provided a detailed overview of Illinois’ legislative process, 
including, but not limited to, structure of the Illinois General Assembly/composition and responsibilities 
of both chambers; legislative sessions/calendars/key dates and deadlines; process for drafting of 
proposed legislation; explanation of committee system/role in reviewing and amending proposed 
legislation; committee hearing process/citizen participation/importance of lobbying and advocacy; how 
bills move to the floor for debate/voting and voting procedures; and, the Governor’s role/options in the 
legislative process. 
 Executive Director … Mr. McCreery reported on high-level legislation of interest/impacting 
counties, including, but not limited to, HB4292 (FOIA/Judiciary inclusion); HB4412/PA102-1123 
(wind/solar) Amendments … anticipates no movement/legislative atmosphere such that a wait-and-see 
attitude prevails before amending law; and, CO2 pipeline … legislation killed/ICC applications 
withdrawn.  Mr. McCreery announced continued monitoring/involvement related to LGDF/Illinois 
Municipal League (IML) 10% increase request, as well as gaining traction for passage of legislation 
dealing with holding of meetings remotely.  Brief overview of Governor’s Budget Address provided.  
Mr. McCreery, in closing, predicted not much action would be taken on pending legislation until after 
the Primary Election in March. 
 Question/Answer session held.    
 
AGENDA ITEM #7 – County Issues 
 Madison … HB2099 (food truck) status/assigned to Consumer Protection Committee 
 Ogle … FMLA/IDES 
 Will … Parental rights bill/impact on County Health Departments 
 Marion … Passage of tax levy/denial of grant (0%) 
 
AGENDA ITEM #8 – Old Business 

 2024 Statewide Salary & Fringe Benefits Survey … Mr. McCreery announced that  
distribution of the annual survey document to member counties was on target for the first week of 
March. 
 



 

 

4
AGENDA ITEM #9 – New Business 

 ICRMT Presentation … Introduction of Jeff Weber and Kyle Shell, Illinois Counties Risk  
Management (ICRMT)/Insurance Program Managers Group (IMPG).  Mr. Weber, announcing 2024 as 
ICRMT’s 41st year in business, expressed his appreciation to UCCI for the confidence placed in the 
entire ICRMT team over the years, which has allowed the program to grow to the point of currently 
insuring 481 public entities.  Mr. Weber outlined the coverages and programs offered by ICRMT and 
encouraged anyone interested in discussing the insurance needs of their county to contact the ICRMT 
office.  Following a review of the background/relationship between UCCI and ICRMT, which included 
the fact that an annual royalty was paid by ICRMT to UCCI, Mr. Weber presented to President Meyer 
this year’s royalty check for upwards of $1.7 million.  

President Meyer thanked Mr. Weber and his team for their continuing efforts in keeping the 
UCCI sponsored insurance programs successful and reminded membership that the royalty received 
from ICRMT is the source of funds that allows UCCI to do what it does … education programs, training 
seminars, dues refunds, all programs/events at no cost to members. 
 
AGENDA ITEM #10 – Adjournment 
 Motion by Clinton County 
 Seconded by Marshall 
 Voice Vote - Motion PASSED. 
 
      NEXT MEETING 

Wednesday, April 10, 2024 
1:00 P.M.  
Abraham Lincoln Presidential Library 
212/112 North 6th Street, Springfield 



State of Illinois 
Before the County Board of CARROLL COUNTY 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

 A resolution to allow Cherry Grove- Shannon Township to accept land rights to Stonefield Drive,  
Whereas, the Cherry Grove- Shannon Township can accept the jurisdiction of Stonefield Drive 
from the intersection Payne Road, thence southerly to Cul De Sac described in attached easement 
documentation. 
Whereas, the County Engineer has provided a permanent easement deed of Stonefield Drive, in the 
attached Exhibit A, 
Whereas IV Enterprises INC. and Cherry Grove- Shannon Township have provided plats of the 
parcel as Exhibit B, 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF CARROLL 
COUNTY: 
 The County Board of Carroll County hereby allows Cherry Grove- Shannon Township to 
accept land rights to Stonefield Drive included in Attachment A as shown in Attachment B, 
authorizes the Cherry Grove- Shannon Township to execute the Permanent Easement Deed and then 
to be effective on the date of the execution of the Permanent Easement Deed. 
 
 
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this    day of    , 20     . 

   Ayes 

   Nays        

   Absent 

   Abstain           
        Joseph Payette, Carroll County Board Chairperson

  

       
 ATTEST: Amy R. Buss, Carroll County Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

********************** 



 
I, Amy R. Buss, County Clerk in and for said County of Carroll, State of Illinois, and keeper of the 
records thereof, do hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and complete copy of a 
resolution adopted by the County Board Members of Carroll County at its regular meeting held in 
Mount Carroll, Illinois on      , 20    . 
 
In Testimony Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said County at my office 
in Mount Carroll, Illinois, this      day of     , 20    .    
 
 
 
 
 (SEAL)                                                                                        

COUNTY CLERK OF CARROLL COUNTY  













 
 

 
 

COUNTY MATCHING FUND RESOLUTION 
 

 WHEREAS, The County of Carroll is preparing for the Cost sharing of the 

Reconstruction of Ideal Road, Section 20-00102-00-PV, and, 

 

 WHEREAS, in compliance with the aforementioned project, it is necessary  

for the County to allocate the funds intended to pay for the County’s share of the cost of 

this improvement, and, 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that there is hereby identified the 

sum of Five Million Eight Hundred Eighty Five Thousand Dollars ($5,385,000.00) of 

budgeted County Matching Funds, thereof as may be necessary to pay the amount of 

$4,955,938.95 that Federal and State funding will reimburse and of the County’s share of 

$429,061.05 cost for Engineering and Construction, and, 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County agrees to pass a supplemental  
 
resolution to provide necessary funds for its share of the cost of this improvement if the  
 
amount appropriated herein proves to be insufficient to cover said cost. 
 
 
 
 
 I,    Amy R. Buss  , County Clerk in and for said County, in the State of Illinois,  
 hereby certify the foregoing to be a true, perfect and complete copy of a resolution  

adopted by the County Board of Carroll  County, at its  
 
Date:_________________________ Meeting held at Mount Carroll, Illinois. 

 
 
            _______________________________________ 
       Carroll County Clerk 
{ S E A L } 





















BLR 05530 (Rev. 07/08/22)Page 9 of 10

Section Number

20-00102-00-PV
County

Carroll
Local Public Agency

Carroll County

Completed03/28/24

Prime Consultant (Firm) Name
Hutchison Engineering, Inc.

Exhibit C 
Qualification Based Selection (QBS) Checklist

The LPA must complete Exhibit D. If the value meets or will exceed the threshold in 50 ILCS 510, QBS requirements must be followed. 
Under the threshold, QBS requirements do not apply. The threshold is adjusted annually. If the value is under the threshold with federal 
funds being used, federal small purchase guidelines must be followed. 

 Form Not Applicable (engineering services less than the threshold)

Items 1-13 are required when using federal funds and QBS process is applicable. Items 14-16 are required when 
using State funds and the QBS process is applicable. 

No  Yes

1 Do the written QBS policies and procedures discuss the initial administration (procurement, management 
and administration) concerning engineering and design related consultant services?

2 Do the written QBS policies and procedures follow the requirements as outlined in Section 5-5 and 
specifically Section 5-5.06 (e) of the BLRS Manual?

3 Was the scope of services for this project clearly defined?
4 Was public notice given for this project?

If yes Due date of submittal 02/22/24
Method(s) used for advertisement and dates of advertisement
County Website - 1/22/24 - 2/22/24 
Newspaper - 1/24/24 & 1/25/24

5 Do the written QBS policies and procedures cover conflicts of interest?

6 Do the written QBS policies and procedures use covered methods of verification for suspension and 
debarment?

7 Do the written QBS policies and procedures discuss the methods of evaluation?
Project Criteria Weighting

Education Experience 20%
Performance on Similar Projects 25%
Approach to Management of Project 20%
Present Workload 15%
Proximity to Project 10%
Qual Minority Rep/DBE Goals 5%
Previous Clients 5%

8 Do the written QBS policies and procedures discuss the method of selection?
Selection committee (titles) for this project
County Engineer, County Engineering Technician, County Secretary

Top three consultants ranked for this project in order
1 Hutchison Engineering, Inc.
2 Chastain & Associates
3 Quigg Engineering, Inc.

9 Was an estimated cost of engineering for this project developed in-house prior to contract negotiation?
10 Were negotiations for this project performed in accordance with federal requirements. 
11 Were acceptable costs for this project verified?

12 Do the written QBS policies and procedures cover review and approving for payment, before forwarding 
the request for reimbursement to IDOT for further review and approval?

















LABOR/OVERHEAD/PROFIT

Project
WORK ITEM Prinicpal Manager Eng 5 Eng 4 Eng 3 Eng 2 Eng 1 Eng Tech 6 Eng Tech 5 Eng Tech 4 Eng Tech 3 Eng Tech 2 Eng Tech 1 Total

Pre-Construction Actvities
     Pre-Construction Meeting 0
          Prep for Meeting (Agenda, Sign in Sheet) 0
          Plan Review 16 16 32
          Meeting Attendance 4 4 8
          Meeting Minutes 4 4
     Field Layout 0
         Measuring Removal Items 40 40 80
         Traffic Control Layout 4 4
         Shop Drawing Review 16 16
Construction Obersvation/Materials Testing: 140 Working Days + 40 Non-
Working Days + 20 Saturdays

0

     Project Manager - 4 hours/week x 35 weeks + 50 Days x 10 hrs/day 640 640
     RE -  200 Work Days (Weekdays+Saturdays) @ 11 hrs/day 2200 2200
     Construction Inspector(s) - 50 Days a 12 Hrs/day 600 600
Documentation 0
     Project File Setup 4 8 8 20
     RE/PM Meeting to discuss doc procedures/issues 4 4 4 12
     Daily Doc - Doc Tech (190 Days x 1 hour/day) 200 200
     QC/QA Reviews at 25% and 75% 16 16
     Project Closeout 0
          Finalizing Files 40 40 80
          Review Revisions 16 24 40
Administration 18 18 18 54

Total Hours 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 668 2966 296 40 4006
Current Rates $86.00 $85.00 $72.75 $63.87 $53.45 $39.61 $34.48 $65.38 $55.78 $47.59 $36.89 $30.72 $26.28
Total Labor/Overhead/Profit $1,548 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,177 $0 $31,790 $109,416 $9,093 $1,051 $154,075

IN HOUSE DIRECT COSTS (IHDC)

ITEM Quantity Unit Rate Total
Mileage
      Pre-Construction Field Layout Miles $0.670 $0.00
      Construction Observation Miles $0.670 $0.00
      Preconstruction Meeting Miles $0.670 $0.00
      PM Site Visits 1000 Miles $0.670 $670.00
CADD Hours $14.000 $0.00
Daily Vehicle Rate 350 Days $65.000 $22,750.00
OT Premium $0.00
     Eng Tech 4 40 Hours $23.80 $952.00
     Eng Tech 3 800 Hours $18.45 $14,760.00
     Eng Tech 2 20 Hours $15.36 $307.20
GPS Days $200.00 $0.00
Overnight Delivery/Postage 1 L Sum $100.00 $100.00
Nuclear Density Gauge Days $50.00 $0.00
Concrete Cylinders $0.00
     Testing 200 Each $50.00 $10,000.00
Proctors $0.00

Total In House Direct Costs (IHDC) $49,539.20

SERVICES BY OTHERS (SBO)

ITEM Quantity Unit Rate Total

$0.00

Total In House Direct Costs (IHDC) $0.00

TOTAL COMPENSATION 

Labor $154,063
Overhead $245,854
Fixed Fee $50,840
In House Direct Costs (IHDC) $49,539.20
Services By Others SBO) = $0.00

Total Compensation = DL+OH+FF+IHDC+SBO $500,296

PHASE III SERVICES

CARROLL COUNTY
CH 8 (Ideal Road) RECONSTRUCTION - Morrison Road to Dutchtown Road



American Eagle Overhead Doors LLC

647 Lincolnway
Morrison, IL  61270
(815) 400-9075
americaneagleoverheaddoors@gmail.com
http://americaneagleoverheaddoors.com/

Estimate
ADDRESS

Carroll County Highway Dept

SHIP TO

Carroll County Highway 
Dept

ESTIMATE # 1849
DATE 02/02/2024

  

QTY RATE AMOUNT

Door install
524V (6.6 R Value) Vinyl Back Insulated  16'2x14 White 
Doors with 24x12 Windows

4 7,050.00 28,200.00

Door install
524V (6.6 R Value) Vinyl Back Insulated  17'8x14 White 
Doors with 24x12 Windows

1 8,078.00 8,078.00

 

I did NOT include operators. I was thinking when we spoke you 

said you didn't need those.

SUBTOTAL 36,278.00
TAX 0.00
TOTAL $36,278.00

Accepted By Accepted Date



















PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, sexual assault affects women, children and men of all racial, cultural
and economic backgrounds; and

WHEREAS, in addition to the immediate physical and emotional costs, sexual
assault may also have associated consequences of post-traumatic
stress disorder, substance abuse, depression, homelessness, eating
disorders and suicide; and

WHEREAS, sexual assault can be devastating not only to the survivor, but also
for the family, friends, and community of the survivor; and

WHEREAS, since no one person, organization, agency, or community can
eliminate sexual assault on their own, we must work together to
educate our entire population about what can be done to prevent
sexual assault, support survivors and their significant others, and
support those agencies providing services to survivors.

NOW THEREFORE, WE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IN AND FOR CARROLL COUNTY,
ON BEHALF OF ALL STAFF AND CITIZENS OF CARROLL COUNTY DO HEREBY
PROCLAIM THE MONTH OF APRIL, 2024 AS

“SEXUAL ASSAULT AWARENESS MONTH”
IN MT CARROLL AND ENCOURAGE ALL CITIZENS TO LEARN MORE ABOUT
PREVENTING SEXUAL VIOLENCE.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, we have
set our hand and caused the
Great Seal of Carroll County to be
affixed this ___ day of April, 2024




















	Agenda
	March 21, 2024 Board Minutes
	Bills Paid in Vacation
	Committee On Claims
	Hwy Dept. Monthly Report
	NWILED Monthly Report
	UCCI Report
	Resolution Cherry-Grove TWP Easement to Stonefield Drive
	Resolution Allocating County Matching Funds for Ideal Road Project $804,000
	Resolution Allocating Matching Funds for Ideal Road Project $5,385,000
	Contract Agreement with Hutchison Engineering
	American Eagle Overhead Doors Estimate
	Petitions for Bridge Aid from Wysox Road District
	Proclamation of Sexual Assualt Awareness Month
	Timberlake Raffle License Application



